

**BY-LAWS
OF
BAY AREA CLUB, INC.
AS
AMENDED NOVEMBER 20TH, 2004**

ARTICLE I NAME

The name of this organization shall be Bay Area Club, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Club.

ARTICLE II PURPOSE

Section 2.1: The purpose of the Club is to render, without profit to the Club, assistance to Alcoholics Anonymous (AA) groups, - Al-Anon Family Groups (AFG), and any other Board approved Twelve Step Group (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Groups". A reference to a single identified group shall refer to that group only).

Section 2.2: Pursuant to the aforementioned objective, the Club shall be authorized to buy, rent, lease, or otherwise acquire, maintain, equip, and operate a clubhouse or other quarters and/or facilities suitable for carrying out these purposes.

ARTICLE III PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES

Section 3.1: The use of alcoholic beverages or drugs, in any form, unless prescribed by a licensed medical practitioner, shall be prohibited on the premises of the Club.

Section 3.2.: Gambling of any kind, as well as any other illegal activities as defined by State and/or local laws, shall be prohibited on the premises of the Club.

Section 3.3.: Any individual in violation of Section 3.2 or Section 3.3 of Article III shall be removed from the membership rolls of the Club.

Section 3.4: Any individual in violation of Section 3.2 or Section 3.3 shall be removed from the Club premises.

ARTICLE IV MEMBERSHIP

Section 4.1: Membership in the Club shall be restricted to members of - Groups.
. Membership in the Club shall be classified as follows:

Section 4.2: Voting members shall have the right to vote in any Club election or on any matter brought to a vote of the Club membership. Voting members shall be defined as - Active Members who shall have - paid their membership dues for three (3) calendar months immediately preceding the calendar month in which the vote is taken.

Section 4.3: - Except as provided herein, Active membership shall be defined as members of - Groups who have paid their dues for one calendar month. An individual in a 12- step group whose members are seeking sobriety, also, must have achieved thirty days of continuous sobriety - in addition to the dues requirement to be considered an Active Member.

Section 4.4: All membership shall be non-assessable and nontransferable.

Section 4.5: Guest privileges-all members of -Groups, club members, and all persons shall be welcome to visit and use the Club's facilities at such times and subject to such rules and regulations as may be prescribed by the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE V MEMBERSHIP PROCEDURES

Section 5.1 : Revocation - -, A member of a 12- step group, the purpose of which is to seek sobriety, shall have his/her membership in the club - automatically revoked by the member's use of alcoholic beverages -. Membership of any individual in the Club is automatically revoked by the member's use of illegal drugs. Any membership may be revoked for refusal to conform to house rules or non-payment of dues. The Board of Trustees may revoke any membership on the grounds of any action detrimental to the club.

Section 5.2: Any member whose membership has been revoked must re-qualify as a new member.

Section 5.3: Hearing -- any member who feels that his or her membership has been unjustly revoked may petition in writing to the Secretary for a hearing before the Board. The Secretary shall notify the presiding officer of the petition and the presiding officer shall call a special meeting of the Board to consider the petition within fourteen (14) calendar days. At the hearing, the presiding officer shall permit the petitioner to speak on his or her own behalf and/or permit others to speak for/or against said petitioner.

ARTICLE VI CLUB FINANCES

Section 6.1 : Dues as established by the Board of Trustees shall be due and payable on the first day of each month and shall apply to membership during the month in which the dues are paid. Members failing to satisfy their dues obligation before the 29th day of the month shall have Inactive Member status for that month. Any member holding Inactive Status for two (2) consecutive months shall be removed from the membership rolls and must re-establish membership.

Section 6.2: No dues or fees shall be required from individual members of - - Groups or their families for the privilege of using the Club's facilities for attending meetings on the Club premises, but only those members of -Groups who have met the -voting membership requirements - - shall be eligible to vote on the conduct of the Club's affairs.

Section 6.3: Except as otherwise provided in these By-Laws, the Club shall follow a tradition of self-support through the voluntary payment of dues and contributions from its own members. The Board of Trustees may, however, establish charges or accept contributions for service rendered by the Club in the form of food, beverage, social activities, or the use of the Club's facilities for group meetings. Grants or gifts of money or property shall be approved by the Board of Trustees.

Section 6.4: Direct financial aid may be solicited from outside sources, provided the funds received from such outside sources are limited by the Board of Trustees to a reasonable and prudent amount from any individual source, so as to avoid undue influence from the making of a contribution. These funds shall only be used for a purpose designated by the Board of Trustees for the benefit of the Club, such as for major capital improvement, purchase, or construction of real property.

ARTICLE VII USE OF FACILITIES

Section 7.1: Group use of facilities-any Group - may make application to the Board of Trustees for permission to use the meeting rooms for regular or special meetings. They will not be permitted to use the Club at any other time for any other meeting, fund raising activity, or any other reason except by special permission of the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE VIII BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 8.1: The Board of Trustees of the Club shall consist of the President plus six (6) - members who meet the qualifications set forth in these By-Laws and who do not otherwise hold office in the Club. Two (2) Trustees shall be elected each year to serve for a term of three (3) years. The number may be increased or decreased by amendment of the By-Laws, but no decrease of members shall shorten the term of any incumbent Trustee.

Section 8.2: Membership on the Board of Trustees shall be limited to Active Members who have at least one (1) year of continuous Active Membership. A Trustee must maintain continuous Active Member status for his/her entire term of office. No Trustee shall be a Trustee, Director, or Officer (except for being a GSR) of any similar corporation, AA group- AFG, or other 12-Step Group other than Inter-group for the particular 12- Step Group- - unless he/she resigns such office within one (1) month of election.

Section 8.3: Tenure-unless removed from office in accordance with these By-Laws, each Trustee shall hold office for the term for which he/she is elected and until his/her successor is elected. If a -Trustee resigns, his/her resignation is effective immediately upon receipt of written notice from said Trustee by the President.

Section 8.4: Vacancy--in the event of a vacancy on the Board of Trustees, a majority of the quorum of the Board membership shall promptly fill such a vacancy by the election of an eligible member to fill the vacancy, until the next regular election at the regular meeting in January.

Section 8.5: Removal-a Board member who fails to attend two (2) consecutive Board meetings except for good and valid reasons as determined by a majority of the Board, shall be removed from the Board.

Section 8.6: Removal-a Board member whose membership in the Club is revoked will also be removed from the Board of Trustees.

Section 8.7: Quorum--a majority of the number of Trustees serving as members of the Board constitutes a quorum for the transaction of the business of the Board. Any action of the Trustees that are present at a meeting in which a quorum is present is an act of the Board of Trustees. Any reference herein to "the Board" shall assume the full Board or a quorum thereof.

Section 8.8: The Board of Trustees shall be considered representatives of and agents for the general membership and shall serve as corporate directors of the Club. They shall have full power and responsibility for the management of the Club and its property, real and personal, including the employment of help, maintenance, repairing, and expanding the premises and all other powers necessarily incident to the operation and maintenance of the Club and its facilities, and the carrying out of its purpose as set forth herein. Only the Board may pledge the credit of the Club. No relocation of the Club facility - - shall be instituted by the Board of Trustees without the approval of fifty-one (51) percent of the voting membership present for a special meeting for such relocation-. In its discretion the Board of Trustees may present other changes to a vote of the voting membership. Fifty-one percent (51%) of the votes entitled to be cast by members present and represented by early votes in the election(s) shall be required for any such change presented to a vote of the voting membership.: A Board of Trustees meeting for activities planning shall be held within fifteen (15) days following the annual membership meeting.

Section 8.9: The Board of Trustees shall authorize the President to enter into contracts in the name of the Club, shall act in an advisory and/or supervisory capacity over the officers and Executive Committee, and shall serve as the Appeals Board in any controversy that may arise in the operation of the Club. in addition to having all powers set forth in these By-Laws, the Board of Trustees - shall be authorized to act for the membership in all matters not covered by the By-Laws and shall be subordinate only to a vote of the majority of voting members entitled to cast votes, represented in person and by votes cast in the early voting process, in all matters brought to a vote of the voting membership.

Section 8.10: Procedure at Meetings-the President is the Chairman of the Board of Trustees and shall preside at all meetings of the Board. In his or her absence, the Vice-president, or in his or her absence a member of the Board selected by a majority of the members present, shall preside. The Bay Area Club Secretary shall act as secretary at all meetings of the Board or in his/her absence the Chairman of the meeting may designate any member necessary to act as recording secretary.

Section 8- 11: All meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted using Robert's Rules of Order, Revised.

Section 8.12: The Board of Trustees will hold regular meetings and may hold such other meetings as the Board, or as the Chairman, may determine. At least ten (10) days prior to a meeting of the Board, the Secretary shall notify each member of the Board of the meeting.

Section 8.13: Special Meetings - The Board of Trustees shall hold special meetings at the times and places fixed by resolution of the Board or by the call of the President or any two Trustees. The notice must specify the business to be transacted, or the purpose of such meetings. Attendance of a Trustee at a special meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice.

Section 8.14: Notice of all meetings of the Board of Trustees and the subject of the meeting shall be posted in a conspicuous place ten (10) days prior to said meetings.

Section 8.15: Recall of Board of Trustees - the voting membership of the Club may, upon a vote of two-thirds majority of votes entitled to be cast by voting members present and represented by early votes cast in the election held at a special meeting as defined in Article X, recall any or all of the Board of Trustees of the Club.

Section 8.16: Terms--no member of the Club may serve on the Board two consecutive terms. The regular term is for three (3) years. The initial Board shall consist of two members with one-year terms, two members with two-year terms, and two members with three-year terms. The first election shall have ballots noted with the positions and the terms of the incumbency.

Section 8.17: Treasurer--the Board of Trustees shall appoint a qualified member by January 1 of each year to serve as Club Treasurer. This appointment shall be confirmed by a simple majority of the Voting Members entitled to cast votes who are represented in person and by votes cast in the early voting process at and in connection with the annual General Membership Meeting in January.

Should this appointment not be confirmed by the members, the Board shall appoint another qualified member and follow the above confirmation procedure at the next scheduled General Membership Meeting.

Section 8.18: An audit of the financial records of the Club shall be performed - once a year, or more often as may be directed by the Board of Trustees. Said audit shall be by a person knowledgeable in financial matters. Cost, if any, shall be borne by the Club

ARTICLE IX EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Section 9.1: The Club shall have a five (5) person Executive Committee consisting of the three (3) elected officers, one (1) appointed officer, plus one (1) member appointed by the President. No person may hold more than one position on the Executive Committee simultaneously. The purpose of the Executive Committee shall be to conduct business consistent with the Board's delegated authority. The Executive Committee shall meet with the Board of Trustees: quarterly to report on Club activities.

Section 9.2: The three (3) elected officers on the Executive Committee shall be elected annually at the annual meeting in January and serve for a term of one (1) year. They shall be as follows:

Section 9.3: The President shall be the chief administrative officer of the Club and shall be an Active Member of at least one (1) year's continuous Active Member status. The President shall be elected annually for a term of one (1) year and may not serve two (2) consecutive full terms. The President shall automatically be Chairman of the Board of Trustees and Chairman of the Executive Committee, those requirements for membership to the Board notwithstanding, and shall be a member of all committees, and shall preside over all general meetings of the Club membership. – The President shall appoint one (1) member to the Executive Committee and - may establish any Special Committees he or she deems necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes and functions of the Club. The President shall make or cause to be made periodic reports to general membership on the Club's financial condition, membership, election results, changes in the By-Laws, or other actions or decisions of interest to the general membership. The President shall sign and execute in the name of the Club all contracts or other instruments authorized by the Board of Trustees, except in cases where the Board of Trustees expressly delegates their execution to some other officer or agent of the Club; and shall perform all other duties incident to the office of President, and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Trustees.

Section 9.4: The Vice-president shall serve as an assistant to the President and serve as Chairman of the House Committee as defined in Section 9.13. He or she shall be elected annually for a term of one (1) year and shall be an Active Member with at least one (1) year of continuous Active Member status. At the request of the President, or in his or her absence or disability, the Vice-president shall perform the duties of the President and, when so acting, shall have all powers of, and be subject to all restrictions upon, the President. The Vice-president shall perform such other duties as may, from time to time, be assigned to him or her by the Board of Trustees or the President.

Section 9.5: The Secretary shall be an Active Member with at least one (1) year of continuous Active Member status. The Secretary shall be elected annually for a term of one (1) year. He or she shall keep a record of the minutes of all meetings and elections, certify memberships and eligibility to vote and hold office, make such reports to the membership as the President may direct, be custodian of the corporate seal, files, and documents, act as corporate secretary in legal matters, issue notices of elections and other business meetings, handle the Club's correspondence, and in general perform those duties pertaining to the office of Secretary. The Secretary shall also perform such other duties as may, from time to time, be assigned to him/her by the Board of Trustees or by the President.

Section 9.6: The Treasurer shall be appointed by January 1 of each year by the Board of Trustees and shall be confirmed by a simple majority of the Voting Members present at the annual General Membership Meeting. Further, the Treasurer may serve consecutive terms without limitation but must be re-appointed and re-confirmed each year under these procedures. In addition the Treasurer shall be bonded in the amount of a prudent reserve, the expense to be borne by the Club. The Treasurer shall collect all dues and fees and maintain a record of paid-up and delinquent members and shall be the custodian of the Club's funds. The Treasurer shall post a monthly statement of the Club's income and expenses and shall make available to the other officers and Trustees the records needed for them to discharge their duties. The Treasurer shall make an annual financial report to the general membership and shall receive and give receipt for monies due and payable to the Club from any source whatsoever; and in general perform all duties incident to the office of the Treasurer and such other duties as, from time to time, may be assigned to him/her by the Board of Trustees or the President.

Section 9.7: Duties--the officers of the Club have such powers and duties as from time to time shall be conferred by the Board. The President is the Chairman of the Board and all other officers of the Club are subordinate to him/her, and shall from time to time report as he/she may direct. In the absence of the President, the Vice-president shall exercise all the powers of the President.

Section 9.8: Resignation-an officer may resign at any time and his/her resignation is effective upon receipt of written notice from said officer by the President.

Section 9.9: The Appointed Member-in addition to the four (4) officers enumerated above, the President shall appoint one (1) additional -Voting Member to serve as a member of the Executive Committee and to perform other duties and functions as may be prescribed by the President.

Section 9.10: Vacancies-in case a vacancy occurs on the Executive Committee, the Board of Trustees may appoint an interim officer to serve until a successor is duly elected or confirmed as in the case of the Treasurer, except that the President may appoint a successor if the vacancy occurs in the Appointed Member position, and the Vice-president automatically succeeds to the office of President if that office becomes vacant.

Section 9.1.1 : An officer must maintain continuous Active Member status for the - entire term of his/her office. Requirements for holding office may be waived by a majority vote of the -entire Voting Membership.

Section 9.12: Newly elected and confirmed officers and Trustees shall take office on the first day of the month following the election or appointment. Officers and Trustees shall serve without pay and without bond except that the Treasurer shall be bonded in the amount of a prudent reserve. The Secretary shall keep posted in a conspicuous place the names of all officers and Trustees and the expiration dates of their terms of office.

Section 9.13: The purpose of the House Committee is to maintain the Club facilities. At a minimum, this committee quarterly basis.

Section 9.14: Only Active Members shall be entitled to be members of any Club operating committee.

ARTICLE X MEETINGS

Section 10.1 : An annual business meeting and election of Officers and Trustees shall be held on a Saturday in January of each year at a time and place to be selected by the President. The Secretary shall cause the general membership to the time and place of this meeting at least fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting by means of posting a notice containing that information in a conspicuous place within the Club facility. Also contained in the notice is to be a list of offices to be filled and a slate of eligible candidates for those offices along with a statement of the nature of any other business expected to come before the membership. The voting membership list shall be closed out at midnight on the last day of December preceding the date of the annual General Membership Meeting.

Section 10.2: The Nominating Committee of three (3) Active Members shall be appointed by the incumbent President at least thirty (30) days prior to the Annual Meeting and Election so that the slate of eligible candidates for office may be posted fifteen (15) days prior to the election. The purpose of the Nominating Committee is to propose a slate of eligible candidates.

Section 10.3: Nominations from the floor will be accepted at the Annual Meeting and Election, but nominees must meet the requirements for holding office as set forth in Articles VIII and IX.

Section 10.4: Club officers shall be elected or confirmed in the following sequence:

1. President (who then takes his/her place as Chairman of the meeting)
2. Vice-president
3. Treasurer-to be confirmed
4. Secretary
5. Trustees as required

Section 10.5: Each member shall be entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the voting members. The elections and other business shall be governed by a simple majority of votes entitled to be cast by voting members present at the meeting and represented by early votes cast in the election. Elections shall be by secret ballot with the exception of mail-in early voting ballots.

Section 10.6: Proxy Ballots are not acceptable at any meeting of the membership, nor are proxy ballots acceptable at meetings of the Board.

Section 10.7: Early voting Ballots - -may be submitted in accordance with this section. The early voting ballot may be mailed to the Club to the attention of the

Secretary if it is signed and notarized by the voting member and received at the Club on or before the date and time of the meeting at which the election is being held. A voting member, also, may appear in person to submit an early voting ballot, provided that the ballot is signed in the presence of the Secretary, prior to the meeting at which the election is being held. The Secretary shall post a notice of the time and place for early voting at least fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting. Early voting ballots will be made available in a designated location at the Club at least fifteen (15) days in advance of the meeting.

Section 10.8: Monthly general membership meetings shall be held on a date and at a time and place to be set by the Board of Trustees. All meetings, regular or special, shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order. The Club Secretary shall act as Parliamentarian and in the event of his/her absence, the President shall appoint a Parliamentarian to act in the Secretary's place. At the monthly general membership meetings, a quorum of twenty percent (20%) of the -voting membership as of the end of the preceding month shall be required to conduct Club business.

Section 10.9: Special meetings of the general membership may be called at any time by the President, by the Board of Trustees, or by a petition in writing by at least one-fourth (1/4th) of the Voting membership. The petition must include the reason for the meeting. Notification of and voting procedures for special meetings shall be the same as for the annual meeting, and the Secretary shall notify the membership of the time and place of any Special Meeting. The Secretary will state in the notice the purpose of the special meeting and the matters to be considered at the meeting. The membership may not consider matters of business not stated in the notice.

ARTICLE XI AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS

Section 11.1 : These By-Laws may be amended only by a - majority vote of the entire -Voting Membership. The early voting methods set forth in Section 10.7 herein shall apply to vote(s) to amend these By-Laws.

ARTICLE XI1 MISCELLANEOUS

Section 12.1 : Execution of Contracts - the Board of Trustees, except as these By-Laws provide, may authorize any officer or agent of the Club to enter into any contract or execute or deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Club. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances and unless so authorized by the Board or by these By-Laws, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Club to any contract or engagement, - or render it liable for any purpose or for any amount. As stated elsewhere in these By-Laws, only the Board of

Trustees has authority to pledge the credit of the Club. Accordingly, no officer, agent or employee shall have any such

Section 12.2: Checks -all checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Club shall be signed by the Treasurer and at least one other officer, as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Trustees.

Section 12.3: Deposits-all funds of the Club shall be deposited promptly to the credit of the Club in such banks, trust companies, or other depository as the Board of Trustees may from time to time designate, and for the purpose of such deposit, the President, Vice-President, Treasurer, or Secretary may endorse, assign, and deliver checks, drafts, and other orders for the payment of monies which are payable to the order of the Club.

Section 12.4: General and Special Bank Accounts-the Board of Trustees may authorize the opening and keeping of general and special accounts, and may make such special rules and regulations with respect thereto, not inconsistent with the provisions of these By-Laws, as it may deem expedient.

Section 12.5: The Fiscal Year of this Corporation shall be January 1 to December 31.

Section 12.6: The Club House Rules as well as a copy of these By-Laws shall be posted in a conspicuous place, available to the general membership at all times, and shall include prohibitions against the use of intoxicating beverages, non-prescribed drugs, gambling, and all other illegal activities.

ARTICLE XIII DISSOLUTION

Section 13.1: Upon the winding-up and dissolution of this Corporation, after paying or adequately providing for the debts and obligations of this Corporation, the remaining assets shall be distributed to - -: an AA Intergroup, AFG Intergroup, other 12-Step Intergroup), and for any other non-profit foundation or corporation which is organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, or religious and/or scientific purposes and which has established its tax exempt status under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 13.2: No part of the net earnings of this Corporation shall ever inure to or for the benefit of or be distributed to its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the Corporation shall be empowered to pay reasonable

compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distribution in furtherance of the exempt purposes for which it

Section 13.3: Notwithstanding any other provisions of the By-Laws, the Corporation shall not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on by a corporation exempt from Federal Income Tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954

INDEX

Absentee ballots	10.7
Amendments to By-Laws	11.1
Audit	8.18
Board of Trustees	
Assume office	9.12
Authority	8.8
Chairman	8.10, 9.7
Composition	8.1
Eligibility	8.2
Meetings	8.10-8.13
Quorum	8.7
Recall	8.15
Resignation	8.3
Tenure	8.3
Term	8.4
Vacancy	12.2
Checks	
Club facilities	
AA and AFG meetings	7.1
Availability to membership	9.1
Club House Rules	12.6
Club management	9.3
Consecutive Terms	8.16
Contracts	12.1
Contributions	6.3
Credit	12.3
Deposits	12.3
Dissolution	13.1
Dues	6.1-6.3
Executive Committee	
Assume office	9.12
Composition	9.1
Duties	9.7
Establish dues	9.7
Guest privileges	4.5
Permission to use facilities	7.1
Presidential appointee	9.1, 9.9
Purpose	8.8
Resignation	8.3
Vacancy	8.4
Financial report-annual	9.6
Fiscal year	12.5
Gambling	3.3

Guests	4.5
House Committee	9.4, 9.13
Income and expenses posted	9.6
Meeting notice	8.12-8.14, 9.5
Members	
Active defined	4.1
Certified by Secretary	9.5
Dues	6.1
Inactive Status	6.1
Grievance hearing	5.3
Non-assessable, non-transferable	4.4
Requalification	5.2
Sobriety	4.3
Terminating membership	5.1
Voting, defined	4.2, 4.3
Membership meetings	
Annual	10.1 start
Regular general	10.8
Special	10.9
Nominating committee	10.2
Parliamentarian	10.8
President	
Chief administrative officer	9.3
Duties and responsibilities	9.3
Requirements for office	9.3
Proxy ballots	10.6
Quorum	8.7, 10.8
Removal from	
Club premises	3.5
Membership rolls	3.4
Office	8.5, 8.15
Robert's Rules of Order	8.11
Secretary	
As parliamentarian	10.8
Duties and responsibilities	9.5
Term of office	9.12
Special bank accounts	
Rules and regulations	12.4
Special meetings	
Board of Trustees	8.13
Relocation	8.8
Hearings	5.3
Membership	10.9
Purpose	8.13

Treasurer	
Duties and responsibilities	9.6
Selection procedure	8.17
Term of office	9.6
Use of alcohol or drugs	3.2, 5.1
Vice-president	
Chairman of House Committee	9.4
Duties and responsibilities	9.4
Voting-Annual meeting	10.5
Club election	4.2
Majority	10.5
Members	4.1
Nominating committee	10.2
Nominations (floor)	10.3
Secret ballot	10.5
Sequence	10.4
Slate of candidates	10.2

The following amendments to the Bay Area Club By-Laws were incorporated in September, 1997.

Art. 8.10. "Secretary of the Board" changed to "Bay Area Club Secretary"

Art. 8.18. New Article calling for semi-annual audit.

Art. 10.1. Close-out of voting membership changed to December 31 preceding the month for the General Membership meeting. Also, "third Saturday in January" was changed to "a Saturday in January."

Art. 10.8. Regular monthly general membership meetings to be set at a time, date and place by the Board of Trustees. Also, a quorum of 20% of membership is required to conduct business at a general membership meeting.

Art. 12.5. Fiscal year of Club was changed from February 1-January 31 to January 1- December 31.

The following amendments to the Bay Area Club By-Laws were incorporated on November 20th, 2004.

Section 3.1 Removed

Section 4.1 Changed from limited to defined as Active Member

Section 4.3 Changed from limited to, to define as Active Member. Removed membership shall terminate at any interruption of sobriety. Added Groups who paid their dues for one calendar month. An individual in a 12 step group whose sobriety also must have achieved thirty days sobriety, in addition to the dues requirement to be considered Active Member.

Section 5.1 Removed any membership, except AFG, added a member of a 12-step group, the purpose of which is to seek sobriety, shall have his/her membership in the club automatically revoked by the member's use of alcoholic. Removed or illegal use of drugs. Added Membership of any individual in the Club is automatically revoked by the member's use of illegal drugs.

Section 5.3 Added "or her in all sections referring to his.

Section 6.1 Changed from Executive Committee to Board of Trustees

Section 6.2 Changed from AA, AFG to Groups Changed Active to Voting membership requirements

Section 6.3 Removed in accordance with GSO Guidelines. Changed Executive Committee to Board of Trustees.

Section 7.1 Changed from , AFG to Groups. Changed Executive Committee to Board of Trustees

Section 8.1 Removed Active Member and replaced with members qualifications set forth in these By-Laws

Section 8.2 Added a Trustee must maintain continuous Active Member status for his/her entire term of office. added or other 12-Step Group

Section 8.4 Added, at the regular meeting in January

Section 8.6 Removed suspended, added revoked

Section 8.8 Removed or other change, or other major change. Added votes entitled to be cast by members present and represented by early votes in the elections

Section 8.9 Added a vote of the majority of voting members entitled to cast votes, represented in person and by votes cast in the early voting process

Section 8.10 Added 'or her"

Section 8.15 Removed those present and voting to say votes entitled to cast by voting members present and represented by early votes cast in the election held

Section 8.17 Removed present added entitled to cast votes who are represented in person and by votes cast in the early voting process at and in connection with the annual General Membership meeting in January

Section 8.18 Removed twice, to once a year audit. Removed President, added Board of Trustees to say or as often as directed for the audit

Section 9.1 Removed Administration of the Club's affairs and facilities shall be delegated to say The Club shall have a five person Executive Committee. Added Executive Committee shall be to conduct business consistent with the Board's delegated authority. Removed to aid the President in general administration and management of the Club's facilities. Removed and to conduct such business

Section 9.3 Added continuous to the statement of Active Member status

Section 9.4 Added as defined in section 9.13. Added continuous. Added "or her"

Section 9.5 Added continuous

Section 9.9 Removed Active Added Voting

Section 9.1 1 Added An officer must maintain continuous Active Member status for the entire term of his/her office. Removed Active Added entire voting

Section 9.1 3 New Section added, which added a section 9.14

Section 10.5 Removed vote of the voting members present. Added simple majority of votes entitled to be cast in the voting members present at the meeting and represented by early votes cast in the election. Added with exception of mail in early voting ballots.

Section 10.7 Removed absentee. Added early voting ballots may be submitted in accordance with this section. Entire section concerning early voting is new, see by laws for full details.

Section 10.8 Removed active. Added voting

Section 1 1.1 Changed from 2/3 to majority vote of Voting members not Active. Added the early voting methods set forth in Section 10.7 herein shall apply to vote(s) to amend these By-Laws.

Section 12.1 Removed or to pledge is credit. Added as stated elsewhere in these By-Laws, on the Board of Trustees has authority to pledge the credit of the club accordingly, no officer, agent or employee shall have such power.

Section 13.1 Removed(an other 501c(3) organization, in support of AA and AFG Groups, if possible. Added other 12 Step Intergroup